
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 9 November 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Employment 
Committee  

     
 

 

Wednesday, 17 November 2021 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, 

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Barry Dobson, Councillor Annie Mason, 
Councillor Adam Stokes and Councillor Paul Wood 
 

 

Agenda 
 

   
1.   Apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2021 
  

(Pages 3 - 10) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
To consider updates on the Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

(Page 11) 

5.   HR Dashboard 
A presentation of a HR Dashboard providing establishment data and HR 
metrics for the period April to September 2021/22. 
 

(Pages 13 - 39) 

6.   Mental Health and Wellbeing Update 
To update members of the Employment Committee on the Council’s Mental  
Health and Wellbeing Action Plan 2021/22. 
   

(Pages 41 - 52) 

7.   Name Blind Recruitment Procedure 
The Employment Committee on 22 September requested that a policy 
document on the implementation of Name Blind Recruitment is brought to 
the next meeting. 
 
 

(Pages 53 - 74) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
8.   Return to work at the Council Offices 

The Deputy Chief Executive to provide a verbal update on plans for returning to work  
at the South Kesteven District Council Offices. 
 

 

9.   Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
Members to consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2021 – 2022. 
 

(Pages 75 - 76) 

10.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 
 

 



 
 

MINUTES 
 

Employment Committee 
 

Wednesday, 22 September 2021, 10:00 
 

Council Chamber – South Kesteven House,  
St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 
 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Adam Stokes) 
Councillor Paul Wood 
 

 

 
 
 

Cabinet Members in attendance  
 
 

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture & Visitor Economy) 
Councillor Linda Wootten (Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance) 
 
Officers in attendance 
 

Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Ken Lyon (Assistant Chief Executive) 
Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 
Alice Atkins (Democratic Officer) 
 
 

 

 

 

22. Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Barry Dobson and 
Councillor Anna Kelly. 

 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew would be substituting for Councillor Barry 
Dobson, for this meeting only.  

 
23. Disclosure of interests 

 
There were none. 

 
24. Minutes of the meetings held on: 

 
25. 10 June 2021 (Special meeting) 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2021 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

26. 16 June 2021 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2021 were proposed, seconded, and 
AGREED as a correct record, subject to the following amendments: 

 

• Correction of the spelling of the surname of the Leader of the Council, 
Councillor Kelham Cooke 

 

• Correction of the spelling of the surname of the Deputy Chief Executive, Alan 
Robinson 

 
27. 4 August 2021 (Special meeting) 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 August 2021 were proposed, seconded, and 
AGREED as a correct record. 

 
28. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive presented the Employment Committee Work Plan for 
the period 2021 -22. He noted that the Committee had added to the workplan 
during the meeting by receiving the action plan from the LGA Peer Review.  

 
Members commented on: 

 

• Whether the People Strategy would be factored in to the Work Plan. 
 

It was confirmed that the HR team were currently working on plans regarding to the 
People Strategy and that this would likely be presented to Employment Committee 
in January. 

 

• Whether a review of the SKDC intranet could be added to the Work Plan.  
 

It was confirmed that this would be noted. 
 

The Employment Committee noted the Work Plan 2021-22. 
 

29. Updates from the previous meeting 
 

The Chairman referred to Agenda Item Number 5 which was an update on the 
number and types of apprenticeships being supported at South Kesteven District 
Council (SKDC). 

 
30. Apprenticeships Update 

 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer communities presented the report which 
provided an update on current apprenticeships at SKDC. The report outlined how 
SKDC had met its annual apprenticeship target of 2.3% of its headcount. The report 
also provided information on funding for additional incentives for new starters as 
well as the Government scheme, Kickstart. 

4



 
 

 
Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 

 

• Whether the current apprenticeship target of 2.3% of headcount could be 
increased. 

 
The Leader responded with support for more apprenticeships but noted that the 
Council should carefully consider all apprenticeships to ensure that they are 
meaningful and add value to the organisation.  

 

• How many apprentices had entered into full time employment at the Council? 
 

It was noted that the majority of apprentices did stay on and enter into full time 
employment at the Council. Officers stated that specific data relating to this could 
be provided to Members.  

 

• Whether there was a mandatory period of time apprentices would stay at the 
Council following the completion of an apprenticeship. 

 
It was confirmed that apprentices were not obligated to remain at the Council for 
any period of time following the completion of an apprenticeship. Officers advised 
that the costs associated with employing apprentices were mitigated by the existing 
Apprenticeship Levy.  

 

• A query was raised relating to the age range of apprentices.  
 

It was noted that there was no age limit for apprentices.  
 

• Members discussed the need to communicate through the media the Council’s 
work on apprenticeships.  

 
The Leader proposed an amendment to the report’s recommendation to include an 
expansion, with the additional wording underlined: 

 
Notes the update on apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council, celebrates 
all that has been achieved, and continues to ensure that all apprenticeship 
opportunities are maximised. 

 
The proposal was seconded. 

 
Following a vote, the amendment to the recommendation of the report was 
AGREED.  

 
DECISION: 

 
The Employment Committee noted the update on apprenticeships at South 
Kesteven District Council, celebrated all that has been achieved, and would 
continue to ensure that all apprenticeship opportunities are maximised. 

5



 
 

31. Mental Health and Wellbeing 
 

The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities presented the report which 
provided an update on the Mental Health and Wellbeing action plan. The report 
highlighted the actions taken to support staff and Member wellbeing, including a 
range of mental and physical wellbeing sessions.  

 
Updates around the issue of additional financial costs for staff working from home 
as well as how staff would be supported to maintain a healthy work life balance 
were provided by the Deputy Chief Executive.  

 
It was noted that an additional Mental Health and Wellbeing ‘pulse survey’ would be 
undertaken by staff. 

 
Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 

 

• What was the consensus amongst staff regarding working from home?  
 

It was noted that the majority of staff had a preference for a blended approach of 
both home working and office-based working. It was noted that at present, senior 
leadership had been assessing office improvements. Officers noted that teamwork 
and in-person connection was important, and that priority should be placed on 
performance and outcomes rather than on presenteeism.  

 
DECISION: 

 
The Employment Committee noted the update on the Mental Health and 
Wellbeing action plan at South Kesteven District Council. 

 
32. Onboarding Employees Update 

 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities presented the report which 
provided an update on the onboarding of employees at SKDC. The report 
highlighted how the process was currently being refreshed to account for hybrid 
working conditions.  

 
Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 

 

• Members discussed the Buddy System currently operating at SKDC. 
 

The Deputy Chief Executive spoke in support of the Buddy System, noting that it 
had helped him to settle into the Council quickly. 

 

• Whether the Buddy System would be introduced for Members. 
 

It was noted that any such system had previously been dealt with within the political 
groups. The Leader spoke in support for a Member/Officer buddy system and 

6



 
 

referred to his experience at Lincolnshire County Council where this had been in 
operation.  

 

• Members discussed the challenges associated with becoming a newly elected 
Councillor. 

 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities noted that the induction 
process for Members was due to be reviewed. The Deputy Chief Executive noted 
that a Buddy System could be trialled following the upcoming by-election taking 
place in the District. 

 
DECISION: 

 
The Employment Committee noted the updated on the onboarding process 
for employees at the Council. 

 
33. Name Blind Recruitment 

 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities presented the report which 
provided information on name blind recruitment, a recruitment process with the aim 
of removing unconscious bias and recommended that the Employment Committee 
consider the implementation of this.  

 
The Deputy Chief Executive advised that the Employment Committee had 
supported the implementation of name blind recruitment a number of years 
previously, but that the process had only been deemed viable now.  

 
Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 

 

• Whether some details, such as an applicant’s address and educational 
background, were to be made known. 

 
It was confirmed that an applicant’s educational qualifications would be retained, 
but that the dates of these would not be made known unless necessary. 

 

• Members discussed the issue of unconscious bias and expressed that it had 
not been an issue at SKDC.  

 

• Members expressed support for the implementation of name blind recruitment 
but raised concerns about the level of detail included in the report. 

 
The Leader proposed an alternative recommendation to that in the report, as 
follows: 

 
That the Employment Committee support the use of name blind recruitment and at 
the next meeting would bring forward a policy document on the implementation of it.   

 
The proposal was seconded. 

7



 
 

 
Following a vote, the amendment to the recommendation of the report was 
AGREED.  

 
DECISION: 

 
The Employment Committee supported the use of name blind recruitment and 
at the next meeting agreed to bring forward a policy document on the 
implementation of it. 

 
34. Local Government Association - Remote Peer Support - Final Report 

 
The Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance presented the report which set out 
the findings of the Remote Peer Support, which was undertaken in July 2021, 
led by the Local Government Association (LGA) with input from leaders within the 
local government sector and also sets out the timetable for further engagement with 
the LGA peer support programme. 

 
The Assistant Chief Executive expressed his thanks to the LGA and to Frances 
Marshall who had co-ordinated the Peer Support to SKDC. 

 
Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 

 

• Whether there was an indication as to how the long the process would take. 
 

It was confirmed that the LGA Peer Challenge would take place during the coming 
November, with a briefing to follow at the end of the Challenge. A few weeks 
following the briefing, a formal report would be received which would be presented 
to Cabinet and then to Full Council. It was noted that an action planning session 
was due to take place in a week’s time in order to develop a prioritisation 
framework. This framework would be presented to Employment Committee in 
January.  

 

• Members spoke positively of the peer review, citing how it had highlighted the 
recent successes of SKDC as well as the challenges the organisation had 
faced. Members expressed support for holding a peer review on a regular basis 
going forward. 

 

• A concern was raised that the Council was committing to too many plans, in 
relation to the recommendations in the peer review report. 

 
The Leader noted that due to external factors such as the impact of COVID-19 and 
a reduction in funding from Central Government, the Council had had to prioritise its 
ambitions. It was noted that difficult decisions must be made at present in order to 
future proof the organisation.  

 
The Chief Executive also noted that the Council had had to balance its plans with 
the funding and resources available. She noted that the new appraisal system was 

8



 
 

key to delivering the Council’s ambitions and would continue to be instrumental in 
ensuring the right resources and skill sets were available to do this. The Council’s 
response to COVID-19 was commended and the level of change delivered during 
this period was highlighted.  

 
DECISIONS: 

 
The Employment Committee: 

 
1. Noted the report from the Local Government Association and future 

actions, including a Corporate Peer Challenge in November 2021 
2. Formally thanked the Local Government Associated and members of the 

peer team for their support in undertaking the review and developing the 
attached report 

 
35. Designation of Monitoring Officer 

 
The Leader of the Council presented the report which provided the Employment 
Committee with the opportunity to consider a recommendation to Council in relation 
to the designation of the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive, Alan Robinson, left the room during the discussion 
and vote. 

 
Members commented on: 

 

• Members commended the conduct of Alan Robinson, who had been appointed 
as Deputy Chief Executive at SKDC in January 2021. 

 
The recommendation within the report was proposed, seconded, and AGREED. 

 
DECISION: 

 
The Employment Committee recommended that Council designate Alan 
Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive, as South Kesteven District Council’s 
Monitoring Officer from 30 September 2021. 

 
36. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 

decides is urgent 
 

The Chairman invited Members to raise any other business. 
 

The Leader wished to express his congratulations and thanks to the Head of 
Leisure, Karen Whitfield, and to all of the other Officers who had worked to launch 
LeisureSK and to TUPE transfer LeisureSK staff. LeisureSK had recently been 
nominated for an MJ Award and had been highly commended, especially for a 
company which had only been set up in January. Thanks were given to all the 

9



 
 

members of staff and the Members who had been involved in the launch of 
LeisureSK.  

 
37. Close of Meeting 

 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 11:23. 

 
 

10



Action Sheet 
To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 22 September 2021 meeting of the Employment Committee.  

Minute 
no. 

Agenda Item Action(s) Assigned to Response/Status 

26. Minutes of the 
meeting 16 
June 

a) Correct spelling of the surnames of 
the Leader of the Council and the 
Deputy Chief Executive  

Democratic 
Services 

a) Completed 

28 Work 
Programme 
2021 - 2022 

b) Factor the refresh of the Council’s 
People Strategy into the Work 
Programme 
 

 

c) Factor in a review of the Council’s 
intranet into the Work Programme  

Human 
Resources 

b) The People Strategy refresh has been added to 
the Work Programme and is due to be 
presented at a January meeting of the 
Employment Committee 

 
c) A review of the Council’s intranet has been 

factored into the Work Programme and is due to 
be assigned 

 

11

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
17 November 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 

 Cabinet Member for People and 
Safer Communities 

           

HR Dashboard 

A presentation of a HR Dashboard providing establishment data and HR metrics for the period 
April to September 2021/22. 

 
 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 

 
 01476 406137 

  j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 4 November 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 8 November 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason (Cabinet Member for People 
and Safer Communities) 

9 November 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes and discusses the information provided in the dashboard for the six-month 
period April to September 2021 

13

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 
 

1.1 The Employment Committee has requested that a comprehensive HR Dashboard be 

provided every six months to Committee. The dashboard for the period April to September 

2021 is attached to this report at Appendix One. 

1.2 The HR team is continuing to work closely with the Organisation Development and 

Change team to develop the dashboard and roll out a version to managers. 

1.3 It is proposed that the dashboard information is presented at the Employment Committee 

and shared with Union representatives at the Joint Consultation and Negotiation 

Committee and wider employee groups. 

1.4 The Dashboard for the 17 November 2021 Employment Committee covers the year to 

date 2021/22.   

1.5 The Dashboard covers the following themes: 

a) Establishment 

b) Sickness and Absence 

c) Starters and Leavers 

d) Performance Management 

e) Learning and Development and 

f) Equality and Diversity. 

1.6 There has been a reduction in the number of return to work interviews completed in both 

Quarter 1 and Quarter 2.  The HR team are working with managers to ensure these are 

completed and will send reminders on a monthly basis. 

1.7 In Quarter 1, 7.3% of the return to work interviews had not been completed. The actual 

number of return to work interviews not completed in this quarter is 11.   

1.8 In Quarter 2, 15.4% of return to work interviews had not been completed.  The actual 

number of return to work interviews not completed in this quarter is 28.  

1.9 At the last presentation of the HR Dashboard, it was identified that limited Equality and 

Diversity information was held on iTrent. All staff have been requested to update their 

details and this has been done by a proportion of staff. 

1.10 Information for new starters is captured as part of the job application process with 

mandatory Equality and Diversity information that has to be provided. 

2 Financial Implications  
 

2.1 The staffing budget is the most significant annual cost the Council incurs so it is of vital 

importance that the Council actively reviews and understands the composition, operation, 

development and performance of its workforce to ensure it remains motivated, focussed, 

skilled in order to support the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan ambitions. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer 

3 Legal and Governance Implications  
 

3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 

14



 

 
 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  
 

4.1 Please see paragraph 1.5.  All private and confidential information is collated and stored 

securely on the iTrent system.  No private or sensitive data is shared via the HR 

Dashboard. 

5 Risk and Mitigation 
 

5.1 Not Applicable 

6 Community Safety Implications  
 

6.1 Not applicable 

7 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 
 

7.1 Not Applicable. 

8 Appendices 
 

8.1 Appendix One – HR Dashboard 2021/22 (April to September 2021) 

 

 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



HR Dashboard 
Employment Committee

2021/22 YTD

APPENDIX 1

17



Summary of Data for 2021/22 YTD

Establishment 
(Headcount as of October)

Absence

Performance Management New Starters & Leavers

FT PT

295 269

564

453 111 6.05per FTE 795.45 2383.76

Number of 
Disciplinaries

Number of 
Grievances

7 0 43 53

18



Summary of Data for 20/21

Establishment Absence

Performance Management New Starters & Leavers

FT PT

311 273

584

459 125 8.99 per FTE 1171.38 3650.57

Number of 
Disciplinaries

Number of 
Grievances

13 0 61 84

19



ESTABLISHMENT DATA

20



564 523.81

Current Headcount
Current Full Time 

Equivalent

584 536.22

Average Headcount 
2020/2021

Average Full Time 
Equivalent 
2020/2021

Open in Power BI
HRLive
Data as of 10/7/21, 1:27 PM

21

https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&appId=82b71105-f3f0-4eaa-9e9b-38d2adfe999f&reportObjectId=b694a30f-f353-4018-83d1-fe0215ff1f82&ctid=655cb90e-2a35-4ab6-8778-da2b35d7ba48&reportPage=ReportSection2b703a800d0db550894d&pbi_source=copyvisualimage


533 27

Permanent Fixed Term

4

Temporary

Open in Power BI
HRLive
Data as of 10/7/21, 1:27 PM

Open in Power BI
HRLive
Data as of 10/7/21, 1:27 PM

22

https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&appId=82b71105-f3f0-4eaa-9e9b-38d2adfe999f&reportObjectId=b694a30f-f353-4018-83d1-fe0215ff1f82&ctid=655cb90e-2a35-4ab6-8778-da2b35d7ba48&reportPage=ReportSection2b703a800d0db550894d&pbi_source=copyvisualimage
https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&appId=82b71105-f3f0-4eaa-9e9b-38d2adfe999f&reportObjectId=b694a30f-f353-4018-83d1-fe0215ff1f82&ctid=655cb90e-2a35-4ab6-8778-da2b35d7ba48&reportPage=ReportSection2b703a800d0db550894d&pbi_source=copyvisualimage


23

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/5013092d-ca8b-4af7-bad4-8499b33ab713/ReportSection660fbd12c290b570eca1?pbi_source=PowerPoint


9.57%

Labour Turnover 
2021/22 YTD

31

Vacancies Hiring Agency / 
Contractors

4075

24



ABSENCE DATA

25



795.45 2383.76

2021/22 YTD total 
short term sickness

2021/22 YTD total 
long term sickness

6.05

2021/22 YTD 
Average Sickness 

per FTE

Open in Power BI
HRLive
Data as of 10/7/21, 1:27 PM

26

https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&appId=82b71105-f3f0-4eaa-9e9b-38d2adfe999f&reportObjectId=b694a30f-f353-4018-83d1-fe0215ff1f82&ctid=655cb90e-2a35-4ab6-8778-da2b35d7ba48&reportPage=ReportSection8105bfb70908c1190175&pbi_source=copyvisualimage


27

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/5013092d-ca8b-4af7-bad4-8499b33ab713/ReportSection63c2817b70113943e175?pbi_source=PowerPoint


88.65%

RTWs Completed 
21/22 YTD

92.70% 84.60%98.46% 99.04% 98.97% 100.00%

28



Number of visits to Employee 
Assistance Programme 21/22 

YTD:

45 Calls / 173 visits to 
online portal  

Number of visits to Mental 
Health First Aiders 21/22 

YTD : 35

29



NEW STARTERS & LEAVERS
DATA

30



40

New Starters
21/22 YTD

50

Leavers
21/22 YTD

Open in Power BI
HRLive
Data as of 10/8/21, 3:21 PM
Filtered by Financial Year (is 2021/2022), Quarter (is Q1 or Q2)

31

https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&appId=82b71105-f3f0-4eaa-9e9b-38d2adfe999f&reportObjectId=b694a30f-f353-4018-83d1-fe0215ff1f82&ctid=655cb90e-2a35-4ab6-8778-da2b35d7ba48&reportPage=ReportSection75906d102d869b30383c&pbi_source=copyvisualimage


32



EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
DATA

33



Bisexual, 2, 0%

Declined to say, 24, 
4%

Gay, 4, 1%

Heterosexual, 133, 
22%

Not stated, 431, 73%

Sexual Orientation

Agnostic, 7, 1%

Athiest, 24, 4%
Christian - Orthodox, 

18, 3% Christian -
Protestant, 35, 6%

Christian - Roman 
Catholic, 8, 2%

Other, 25, 4%

Not stated, 477, 80%

Religion

Other White 
Background, 10, 2%

British, 407, 69%

Caribbean, 2, 0%

Chinese, 1, 0%

Not stated, 174, 29%

Ethnicity
Declined to say, 10, 

2%
Disabled, 17, 3%

Not Disabled, 125, 
21%

Not stated, 442, 74%

Disability

34



PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
DATA

35



Disciplinaries Grievances Investigations

0 5

4

2021/22 YTD

7

2 1

36



LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT
DATA

37



Learning and Development Apprenticeships

8

0

2021/22 YTD 2021/22 YTD

1

260
Employees 
attended 

events

£73,409.84 58
Learning 
Events

2 Council 
Wide Events

1 Member 
Wide Event

9 courses 
booked post 
Sept 2021 

(already paid)

38



Moving Forward…

39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
17 November 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 Cabinet Member for People & 
Safer Communities 

 

 

Mental Health and Wellbeing  

To update members of the Employment Committee on the Council’s Mental Health and Wellbeing 
Action Plan 2021/22 
 

Report Author 

Alice Atkins (Local Government Association Graduate) 

 
01476 406592 

 Alice.Atkins@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 4 November 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 9 November 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason (Cabinet Member for People 
& Safer Communities) 

9 November 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the update on the Mental Health and Wellbeing action plan at South 
Kesteven District Council 

 

41

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 
 

1.1 The findings of the January 2021 Health and Wellbeing ‘Pulse’ Survey led to the 

development of a Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan which was presented at 

Employment Committee on 10 March 2021. The Action Plan outlined the various wellbeing 

plans which were to take place during the four-month period March – June 2021.  

1.2 At Employment Committee on 22 September 2021, an update was provided on the 

Council’s Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan. The update included information on 

the range of wellbeing initiatives rolled out to staff, including virtual sessions on 

mindfulness, mental health and resilience; virtual workshops promoting the Council’s 

Employee Assistance Programme (EAP); GP-led virtual workshops on diet, weight loss 

management and smoking and virtual cookery lessons supporting Healthy Eating Week. 

The update also included staff feedback received from the wellbeing initiatives. Also 

presented to Employment Committee on 22 September 2021 was an update on the 

response from senior management regarding supporting employees’ work/life balance and 

addressing the additional financial costs for employees working from home. 

1.3 HR has continued to support the mental health and wellbeing of Council employees and 

Members through the implementation of additional wellbeing plans, as outlined in the 

updated Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan (Appendix 1). The purpose of this report 

is to update the Employment Committee on the Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan, 

through providing detail on the various wellbeing plans which have taken place during the 

four-month period August 2021 – November 2021. 

2 Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan Update 

2.1 Mental health and wellbeing training for staff 

As part of work undertaken by the Council’s Mental Health Working Party, HR have 

implemented a range of training for staff with the aim of supporting their mental wellbeing. 

During the period August 2021 – October 2021, the below training has been undertaken: 

Mental Health First Aider Refresher Training – The Council’s 12 existing Mental Health 

First Aiders (MHFAs) undertook refresher training, as per best practice guidelines from 

MHFA England which state that MHFAs should undergo refresher training every 3 years. 

Refresher training is recommended so that MHFAs renew their skills, update their 

knowledge of mental health supports, and have a chance to practice applying the Mental 

Health First Aid action plan. The training took place in-person over the course of a day and 

was provided by local Bourne charity Don’t Lose Hope. 

Mental Health First Aider Training – A review of the Council’s existing MHFAs found 

that some service areas would benefit from the training of additional MHFAs. This was 

either because there was a high volume of staff approaching MHFAs in those service 

areas, or because existing MHFAs had left the organisation. An all-staff email was sent 

out inviting staff to undertake the training and subsequently 9 new MHFAs were trained. 

The training took place in-person over the course of a day and was provided by local 

Bourne charity Don’t Lose Hope. The existing poster which shows the Council’s MHFAs 

will be updated to include all newly trained MHFAs and this will be communicated to all 

staff as well as physically displayed in work stations. 

Bespoke mental wellbeing support training for specific service areas - Between 

September and October mental health support sessions were provided for members of the 

Customer Service and CCTV teams after it had been raised that they had been dealing 

42



 

 
 

with some distressing calls during, and following, the lockdown period. These sessions 

were designed to help the attendees learn different techniques around how to engage with 

people who may be experiencing mental health difficulties. The sessions also aimed to 

support attendees’ own mental health and any wellbeing issues that they may have. The 

sessions were delivered by Eleanor Haswell and Dr Andrew Coward from Get Sorted 

People, an organisation which had previously delivered the ‘Health Shot’ sessions to 

Council staff on mental health and men's/women's health. 

Mandatory mental health training module for all staff – HR are in the process of 

entering into a 1 year contract with national mental health charity, MIND, to deliver 

mandatory online training for all staff. The training will consist of a single 45-minute 

module of interactive learning and will be hosted on the Council’s Learning Management 

System (LMS). The module offers an introduction to mental health and workplace 

wellbeing to employees at every level. Topics will include: an introduction to mental health 

and mental health problems; depression, anxiety and stress (causes, signs and 

symptoms); mental health and work, workplace triggers and tips for building resilience; tips 

for taking care of mental health at work, five ways to wellbeing and wellness action plans; 

support that staff can offer and tips for having conversations about mental health; sources 

of support.  

Mandatory mental health training module for managers - HR are in the process of 

entering into a 1 year contract with national mental health charity, MIND, to deliver 

additional mandatory online training for managerial staff. The course will complement the 

mental health training module for all staff and will offer additional learning material for 

people managers at the Council. The course emphasises the importance of looking after 

managers’ and their teams’ mental health and will consist of four modules. Each module 

will encourage a greater awareness of mental health in the workplace and will build 

managers’ confidence in supporting staff at different stages. The course will last 1.5 hours 

in total with each module lasting between 15 to 25 minutes. All four modules will be hosted 

on the Council’s Learning Management System (LMS). Topics will include: mental health, 

the business case and the role of managers; promoting an boosting staff wellbeing and 

taking stock; conversations about mental health and supporting employees; positive and 

proactive performance management; signposting to information and support.  

2.2 Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) awareness sessions for Members 

Throughout the period September – October, a range of Employee Assistance 

Programme (EAP) awareness sessions ran for Members. The sessions aimed to provide 

Members with an understanding of how the Council’s EAP works and what it offers them, 

when they should make use of the EAP and how to access it, and what the EAP app is 

and how it works. The sessions were run by the Council’s EAP Account Manager, Hannah 

Hill, and were hosted virtually. 

3 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 
3.1 Continue to implement the future mental health and wellbeing plans, as outlined in the 

Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan.  

4 Financial Implications  
 

4.1 There is a specific budget of £25,000 in the 2021/22 budget framework to support 

initiatives to support wellbeing activities. This can be used as required to support activities 

set out in the report.  In addition, use of the corporate learning and development budget 

has been utilised to support the training referenced.  

43



 

 
 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer 

5 Legal and Governance Implications  
 

5.1 From an employment law perspective, the work on mental health and wellbeing are to be 

welcomed, as the Council as an employer has legal obligations to look after the health and 

welfare of its employees. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  
 

6.1 The actions referred to in this report have positive equality implications. An Equality 

Impact Analysis (Appendix 2) has been undertaken to ensure that the action plan does not 

present barriers to participation or disadvantage any protected groups from participation. 

There are no safeguarding implications resulting from this report. 

7 Risk and Mitigation 
 

7.1 The key risk associated with the Health and Wellbeing Action Plan is an increase in staff 

sickness as a result of poor mental health and wellbeing. The actions detailed in the action 

plan aim to mitigate this risk through supporting the welfare of the Council’s employees. 

Community Safety Implications 

8  Community Safety Implications 
 

8.1 There are no community safety implications relating to this report.  

9 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 
 

9.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact.  

10 Other Implications (where significant) 
 

10.1 There are no other implications relating to this report. 

11 Background Papers 
 

11.1 N/A 

12 Appendices 
 

12.1 Appendix 1 - Mental Health and Wellbeing Presentation 

12.2 Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Analysis 

 

 

 

 

44



Action (August – Nov 2021) Update

Mental Health First Aider Refresher Training The Council’s 12 existing Mental Health First Aiders (MHFAs) undertook refresher training, as per best practice 

guidelines from MHFA England which state that MHFAs should undergo refresher training every 3 years. The 

training took place in-person over the course of a day and was provided by local Bourne charity Don’t Lose 

Hope

Training of new Mental Health First Aiders (MHFAs) An all-staff email was sent out inviting staff to undertake the training and subsequently 9 new MHFAs were 

trained. The training took place in-person over the course of a day and was provided by local Bourne charity 

Don’t Lose Hope. The existing poster which shows the Council’s MHFAs will be updated to include all newly 

trained MHFAs and this will be communicated to all staff as well as physically displayed in work stations.

HR is also in the process of co-ordinating the training of elected Member MHFAs.

Bespoke mental wellbeing support training for specific service 

areas 

Between September and October mental health support sessions were provided for members of the Customer 

Service and CCTV teams. The sessions were delivered by Eleanor Haswell and Dr Andrew Coward from Get 

Sorted People.

HR will continue to monitor whether additional bespoke training will be needed by other specific service areas.

Mandatory mental health training module for all staff HR are in the process of entering into a 1 year contract with national mental health charity, MIND, to deliver 

mandatory online training for all staff. The training will be rolled out to staff following the launch of the Council’s 

new Learning Management System and will be appropriately communicated to staff.

Mandatory mental health training module for managers HR are in the process of entering into a 1 year contract with national mental health charity, MIND, to deliver 

additional mandatory online training for managerial staff. The training will be rolled out to staff following the 

launch of the Council’s new Learning Management System and will be appropriately communicated to staff.

Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) awareness sessions for 

Members 

Throughout the period September – October, a range of Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) awareness 

sessions ran for Members. The sessions were run by the Council’s EAP Account Manager, Hannah Hill, and 

were hosted virtually.

APPENDIX 1

45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

Mental Health and Wellbeing  
Action Plan 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
Human Resources 
 

Lead officer: 
Alice Atkins 
  

Date of Meeting  
 
21/10/21 

Assessors: 
Jane Jenkinson 
 

Neutral Assessor: 
Carol Drury 

  

APPENDIX 2 

47



1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

The Mental Health and Wellbeing Action plan was originally developed in 
response to findings from a January 2021 ‘pulse’ survey which tracked how 
Council staff were feeling following a third national lockdown. The actions outlined 
in the plan have been developed to directly address the responses received. The 
survey also included questions relating to the continued practise of working from 
home and considered issues around work/life balance and its impact on mental 
wellbeing. The action plan outlines the Council’s wellbeing provision strategy 
which seeks to support the welfare of Council staff and members. 

 

 
 

Is this a new or existing policy?  Existing  
 
2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 

 
 
Equality Group 

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups?  
 
Please state which for each 
group 

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative. 
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why   

Age 
 
 

Positive The Plan has been developed 
to be inclusive of the extensive 
age range of officers and 
Members working for and on 
behalf of SKDC. The 
programme of activity offers a 
variety of wellbeing sessions 
that are easily accessed and 
suitable for all age groups. 
  

Disability 
 

 

Positive Part of the action plan focuses 
on the promotion of the 
Council’s Employee 
Assistance Programme (EAP). 
The Council’s EAP provides 
support for staff who may be 
experiencing mental or 
physical difficulties, including 
disability or long-term illness. 
 

48



The wellbeing sessions 
outlined in the action plan were 
provided virtually and were 
therefore accessible to staff 
who may have trouble 
physically attending sessions. 

Race 
 

Positive The Plan has been developed 
to be inclusive of the diversity 
of officers and Members 
working for and on behalf of 
SKDC. The programme of 
activity offers a variety of 
wellbeing sessions that are 
easily accessed and suitable 
for all. 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

Positive Whilst this Authority currently 
has no employees or elected 
Members that publicly identify 
as transgender or that have 
stated they have undergone 
gender reassignment the 
activities contained within the 
Mental Health and Wellbeing 
Action Plan are accessible to 
and respectful of all. 

Religion or 
Belief   

Positive The Plan has been developed 
to be inclusive of the diversity 
of officers and Members 
working for and on behalf of 
SKDC. The programme of 
activity offers a variety of 
wellbeing sessions that were 
developed to provide equal 
opportunity for all.  This 
included the organisers of the  
plan being mindful of 
days/times of religious note 
and cultural differences to 
avoid inadvertent exclusion.  

Sex 
 
 
   

Positive Wellbeing sessions outlined in 
the action plan catered for a 
diverse range of issues faced 
by both sexes. Wellbeing 
sessions which focused 
specifically on supporting both 
men and women’s health 
issues were provided. These 
activities were also suitable for 
those who do not identify by 
gender. 

49



Sexual 
Orientation 
 

Positive The Plan has been developed 
to be inclusive of the 
multiplicity of officers and 
Members working for and on 
behalf of SKDC. The 
programme of activity offers a 
variety of wellbeing sessions 
that are easily accessed and 
suitable for all. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

Positive Part of the action plan focuses 
on the promotion of the 
Council’s Employee 
Assistance Programme (EAP). 
The Council’s EAP provides 
support for staff who may be 
experiencing difficulties 
relating to pregnancy and 
maternity. 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 

Positive The Plan has been developed 
to be inclusive of all officers 
and Members working for and 
on behalf of SKDC. The 
programme of activity offers a 
variety of wellbeing sessions 
that are easily accessed 
regardless of protected 
characteristic 

Carers Positive Wellbeing sessions outlined in 
the action plan ran virtually 
and so were accessible for 
carers who may otherwise 
have not been able to attend 
due to the requirements of 
their caring responsibilities 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 
 
*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation) 
 

Positive. The programme, including 
access to the Council’s 
Employee Assistance 
Programme (EAP) was 
provided virtually and without 
cost to employees or elected 
Members.  Therefore there 
were no barriers to 
participation relating to rurality 
or socio-economic factors. 

50



General 
comments 

The Action Plan sets out both generic and topic-specific activity 
and practise to improve mental health and wellbeing. Whilst 
participation in the workshops, social and leisure activities was 
voluntary, the programme was designed to have a positive 
impact on an equitable basis.  The involvement and support 
from the broader management team to address the financial 
and, for some, emotional impact of working from home has led 
to improvements in the practises and policies of the Council. 

 
 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 

Workforce data collected via iTrent and the responses to the Pulse Survey 
determined the content of the Action Plan 

 
If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 
  

Success of the programme will be monitored throughout its lifespan in 
order to address any identified issues or to adapt or improve the 
programme going forward. 

 
 
4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 

required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

   

b)   

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2  

   

c)   

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

   

d   

 

51



b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

 
  

 

 
 
b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 

changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

 
  

n/a 

 
 

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis 

 
c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 

justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 
 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Alice Atkins 
(Name and title)   Graduate 
  

Date completed:  21/10/21  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Carol Drury 
(Name and title)   Senior Community Development Officer 
 

Date signed off:     22/10/21  
 

52



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
17 November 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 Cabinet Member for People and 
Safer Communities 

           

Name Blind Recruitment Procedure 

The Employment Committee on 22 September requested that a policy document on the 
implementation of Name Blind Recruitment is brought to the next meeting. 
 

 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 

 
 01476 406137 

  j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 4 November 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 9 November 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason (Cabinet Member for People 
and Safer Communities) 

9 November 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Approves the updated Recruitment and Selection Procedure to include Name Blind 
Recruitment 

 

53

Agenda Item 7

https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 
 

1.1 At the meeting of 22 September 2021 Employment Committee were asked to consider the 

implementation of a policy on name blind recruitment at South Kesteven District Council. 

1.2 The decision at that meeting was that the Employment Committee supported the use of 

name blind recruitment and at the next meeting agreed to bring forward a policy document 

on the implementation of it. 

1.3 The Council has a Recruitment and Selection Policy which sets out the scope, objectives 

and principles of its approach to recruitment and selection (Appendix 1). 

1.4 One of the principles of the Recruitment and Selection Policy states:  

The Council is committed to employment practices which ensure that no potential or 

current employee is treated less favourably on grounds of sex, race, religion or belief, 

disability, age, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership or 

pregnancy and maternity.    

1.5 The implementation of name blind recruitment helps the Council to deliver on this 

principle.  

1.6 The Recruitment and Selection Policy is supported by a comprehensive Recruitment and 

Selection Procedure which provides details of the processes to be followed at the various 

stages of recruitment and selection. 

1.7 Draft amendments have been made to the Recruitment and Selection Procedure to 

include a section on Name Blind Recruitment (Section 11, p5, Appendix 2). 

1.8 To enable the name blind recruitment process, the recently implemented iTrent 

recruitment module is being rolled out to managers on a phased basis with priority being 

given to those areas with higher levels of recruitment, for example Street Scene and 

Housing. 

1.9 Training content is being developed by the HR team and sessions will be held with 

managers to support them in the use of the recruitment module.  How To guides are also 

being developed as an additional resource for managers. 

1.10 The HR and OD team, together with support from an iTrent consultant will configure the 

recruitment module of iTrent to ensure that name, age and dates of educational 

qualifications are removed from the information that is accessible to recruiting managers 

until the shortlisting process has been completed. 

1.11 This work is due to take place before the end of 2021 and it is anticipated that the system 

will have the capability to restrict personal details of candidates with effect from early 

2022. 

1.12 Once the changes have been made to the iTrent recruitment module, managers will have 

access to candidate applications which are identified only by an applicant number. 

1.13 Following the closing date of a vacancy the recruiting manager will complete the 

shortlisting process and select those candidates they wish to take forward to the next 

stage of the recruitment process.  This is likely to be assessment and/or interview.   

1.14 Once the shortlisting has been completed the system will enable access to the full 

application for those candidates that have been shortlisted.  This will provide the recruiting 

54



 

 
 

manager with the details needed to contact applicants and invite them to the next stage of 

the process. 

1.15 Whilst every effort is made to avoid identity of candidates prior to shortlisting there may be 

occasions where it is possible, for example for senior posts where there is a limited 

network of people who are likely to meet the job requirements. 

1.16 The Employment Committee is asked to approve the amendment to the Recruitment and 

Selection Procedure to include details of the name blind recruitment process.    

2 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 
 

2.1 The information for candidates on the Council’s website will be updated to advise them 

that their information will be anonymised prior to the shortlisting process being carried out. 

2.2 Recruiting managers will receive training and guidance which includes details of the name 

blind recruitment process. 

2.3 The Recruitment and Selection Procedure will be updated on the Recruitment Framework 

on the Council’s intranet. 

3 Financial Implications  
 

3.1 There are no specific financial comments arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer  

4 Legal and Governance Implications  
 

4.1 There are no specific legal and governance implications arising from this report. The 

Council’s current recruitment processes are undertaken in accordance with legislative 

requirements. The proposal outlined in the report strengthens the principles of the 

Council’s Recruitment and Selection Policy as outlined in paragraph 1.4 of the report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  
 

5.1 The implementation of name blind recruitment has a positive impact and will enhance the 

reputation of the Council as an Equal Opportunities Employer and improve the processes 

in recruitment to remove the potential for unconscious bias. 

5.2 Equality Analysis has been carried out on the draft amendments to the Recruitment and 

Selection Procedure (Appendix 3).  

6 Risk and Mitigation 
 

6.1 Not applicable. 

7 Community Safety Implications  
 

7.1 Not applicable. 

8 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 
 

8.1 Not applicable. 

55



 

 
 

9 Appendices 
 

9.1  Appendix 1 – Recruitment and Selection Policy 

9.2  Appendix 2 – Draft Recruitment and Selection Procedure  

 

 

 

 

 

56



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recruitment & 
Selection Policy 

 

APPENDIX 1

57



 

 2 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 The Council has an ambitious People Strategy which aims to be an employer of 

choice with a positive reputation as a great place to work where people make things 
happen. 
 

1.2 The Council recognises that its staff are fundamental to its success and needs to be 
able to attract and retain staff of the highest calibre and a strategic, professional 
approach to recruitment is essential to do this. 
 

1.3 The purpose of this policy is to provide a flexible framework which promotes and 
supports the Council’s corporate objectives, priorities and values and behaviours.  It 
will take into account the need for new ideas and approaches and support the 
Council’s commitment to ensuring a diverse workforce. 
 

1.4 The Council is committed to promoting consistent good practice in the recruitment 
and selection of all employees.  This policy and accompanying procedure is 
designed to assist those involved in the process to recruit the best candidate for the 
job on the basis of their skills, experience and aptitude. 
 

 
2. SCOPE 

 
2.1  This policy applies to the recruitment and selection of all staff, including agency, 

temporary and casual staff, to the Council except the Chief Executive, the 
Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer.  These roles are appointed by the 
Council and separate arrangements apply in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution and any specific legislative requirements applicable. 

 
3. OBJECTIVES 

 
3.1  To enable the Council to meet business needs and provide a quality-driven, added-

value service to customers. 
 
3.2 To recruit the right people who share our values. 
 
3.3 To meet the Council’s operational requirements and strategic aims.  
 
3.4 Aim to have a workforce reflective of the demographic make-up of the community it 

supports. 
 
 
 
4. PRINCIPLES 

4.1 Recruitment and selection is a key public relations exercise and should enhance the 
reputation of the Council.  

 
4.2 All candidates will be treated fairly, equitably and efficiently, with respect and 

courtesy, aiming to ensure that the candidate experience is positive, irrespective of 
the outcome. 

58



 

 3 

 
4.3 All policies, procedures and guidance concerning recruitment and selection are 

communicated clearly to all employees.  
 
4.4 All recruitment practices will be legal, fair and objective and take account of 

statutory obligations.  
 
4.5 Recruitment decisions will be made on an evidence based process and candidates 

should be assessed against agreed selection criteria based on relevant knowledge, 
skills, experience, qualifications and the behavioural framework. 

 
4.6 Line managers are responsible for recruitment.  Professional advice and support is 

available at all stages of the recruitment process from the Human Resources team. 
 
4.7 All employees involved in the recruitment process will be trained in the Council’s 

recruitment and selection policy, procedures and processes. 
 
4.8 If a member of staff involved in the recruitment process has a close personal or 

family relationship with an applicant they must declare this as soon as they are 
aware of the individual’s application and avoid any involvement in the recruitment 
and selection decision-making process. 

 
4.9 The Council is committed to employment practices which ensure that no potential or 

current employee is treated less favourably on grounds of sex, race, religion or 
belief, disability, age, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership or pregnancy and maternity.   

 
4.10 The Council is committed to diversity and equality of opportunity throughout all 

stages of the recruitment and selection policy.  
 
4.11 Documentation relating to applicants will be treated confidentially and in accordance 

with the provisions of the Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA 1998).  
 
4.12 Recruitment procedures will be monitored and reported on to analyse candidate 

experience, examine equalities data and set targets for improvement.  
 
4.13 This policy links to a number of other Council policies and procedures, including 

(but not limited to): Vacancy Management Procedure, Secondment Procedure, 
Relocation Procedure, Equality and Diversity in Employment and Safer 
Recruitment. 

 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
SEPTEMBER 2017 

59



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  
  
  
  

  

  

  

  

 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Recruitment &  

Selection P rocedure 

  

  

APPENDIX 2

61



 

 2    

1. Introduction  

  

1.1  Recruitment and selection is a key public relations exercise and should enhance the 

reputation of the Council. There are significant costs in recruitment including 

advertising costs, manager’s time and the cost of training new employees.  It is 

important therefore that managers take the time to plan the recruitment process 

taking account of guidance and legislation.  

  

1.2  All managers who are involved in recruiting staff must attend the Council’s 

Recruitment and Selection workshop and attend refresher training as required.  

  

  

2. Preparation  

  

2.1 Once the line manager has identified that there is a need to fill a vacant post they must 
ensure that they do the necessary preparation to commence the recruitment process 
as soon as approval is given.   

  

2.2 The line manager will decide on the selection panel as soon as the vacancy is advertised.  
The panel members will be involved in all stages of the recruitment process and 
should not change throughout the process, except in exceptional circumstances.  

  

  

3. Legal Considerations  

3.1  At each stage of the recruitment process consideration must be given to legislation 

which impacts upon the process including the requirements of:  

• Equalities Act 2010  

• Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974  

• Asylum and Immigration 1996   

• Data Protection Act 1998  

• Agency Worker Regulations 2010  

Further details and guidance are available in the Manager’s Guide to Recruitment.   

  

4. Job Description including person specification  

4.1  A job description and person specification must be produced or updated for any 

vacant post that is to be filled.  

  

4.2  The job description must accurately reflect the duties of the post.  The person 

specification should state both the essential and desirable criteria in terms of 

behaviours, skills, aptitudes, knowledge and experience for the job, all of which 

should be directly related to the job and applied equally to all applicants.  Care must 

be taken when writing the person specification to ensure that criteria used do not 

indirectly discriminate against certain groups of applicants.    

  

4.3  For further information on this please see the Recruitment Framework which offers 

guidance on producing both job descriptions and person specifications and includes 

outline templates which must be used.  

  

62



 

 3    

4.4  Once the Job Description and Person Specification are written, the Human 

Resources Team can arrange for the job to be evaluated to establish the 

appropriate grade.  This will apply to a new post or a post that has had some 

changes made to it.    

  

5. Vacancy Management  

5.1  You should complete a Staff Requisition Form and get approval to recruit to a 

vacancy in accordance with the agreed process.  This process should be followed 

for all vacancies including permanent, temporary, fixed term, secondment, casual or 

agency.  

  

5.2  Completed requisition forms must be sent to the Human Resources team who will 

arrange for the post to be advertised or appointment to be confirmed.  

  

5.3  Guidance on completing a staff requisition form is available in the Recruitment 

Framework.  

  

  

6. Attracting applicants  

6.1  The aim of the People Strategy is to recruit the right people who share our values.  

  

6.2  We need to maximise the candidate pool for vacancies and to do this consideration 

needs to be given to the most appropriate method of attracting applicants.    

  

6.3  Consideration will be given to the internal talent pool and whether there is scope to 

provide an opportunity for development and career progression.  

  

6.4  We need to ensure that we use accessible and popular methods to attract and 

increase the pool of candidates.    

  

6.5  Consideration of different methods of recruitment and selection will be made for 

different groups e.g. young people, line managers  

  

6.6  The Human Resources team can provide advice on the most effective method to 

use including the use of social media and specialist publications.  

  

6.7  Agency workers have rights from the first day of their assignment with the Council  

which includes access to job vacancies.  

  

7. Redeployment  

7.1  The Council’s recruitment and selection processes in relation to redeployment will 

be followed.  Redeployees will be considered in the first instance for any vacancies 

that arise within the Council, matching them to any suitable alternative positions that 

become available.   

  

  

  

  

63



 

 4    

  

8. Advertising  

  

8.1 Vacancies will usually be advertised internally first but there may be occasions where 
they are advertised internally and externally at the same time.  This may include senior 
posts or posts requiring specialist qualifications.  

  

8.2  All externally advertised posts will be placed on the Council’s website.  In addition 

posts may be advertised in other media such as jobsites, specialist website and 

professional journals depending on the nature of the job.  

  

8.3.1 Details about where a post is to be advertised should be submitted on the request to 
advertise form once the vacancy has been approved.  The Human Resources team are 
able to provide guidance on the most appropriate media.  

  

8.4  Managers are responsible for writing job adverts using outline templates and these will 

be placed, using the agreed media, by the Human Resources team.  

  

8.4 There may be some circumstances where the need to advertise is waived.  This is 

likely to include:-  

  

• Positions requiring specialised expertise or where there is a skills shortage and where 

the Recruiting Manager can demonstrate that the nominated individual is the most 

suitable person for the position  

  

• Where there is an urgent business need to fill the post and where the Recruiting 

Manager can demonstrate that the nominated individual is the most suitable person for 

the position.  

  

8.6 For short term temporary resourcing requirements the Recruiting Manager may wish to 
recruit an agency worker.  This requires a staff requisition form to be completed and 
approved by a member of senior management.  The Recruiting Manager must provide 
Human Resources with the relevant details once the appointment has been made.  

  

9. Relocation  

  

9.1 The Council has a relocation policy which applies to specialist and difficult to fill roles.  
The Recruiting Manager must decide at the early stage of recruitment whether relocation 
applies and include this information in the advert.  The Human Resources team are able 
to provide advice on the Relocation Policy and its application.  

  

10. External recruitment services  

  

10.1 External recruitment services may be used as an alternative to direct advertising to 
source candidates.  This will be considered on a case by case basis and will usually 
be for senior posts and/or posts requiring specialist qualifications.    

 
 
  

  

64



 

 5    

11. Name Blind Recruitment  

 

11.1 Candidate applications will be available to managers in the iTrent recruitment 

module once a vacancy is live and applications are received. 

 

11.2 To minimise the potential for unconscious bias the iTrent recruitment module is 

configured to ensure that recruiting managers do not have access to information 

which can identify a candidate’s sex, age and ethnicity. This will include names, 

personal email addresses and dates of educational qualifications. 

 

11.3 Candidates will be identified by an applicant number. 

 

11.4 Applicants are made aware that their details will be anonymised through information 

on the job application page of the website. 

 

11.5 Once the shortlisting process has been completed managers will have access to a 

candidate’s name and contact details to enable them to move to the next stage of 

the recruitment process, inviting the candidate for assessment and/or interview. 

 

   

12. Shortlisting  

  

12.1 Shortlisting must be carried out by a minimum of two people and the shortlist decision 
recorded on the shortlisting form template.  Shortlisting must be carried out against 
criteria agreed by the panel at the outset of the recruitment.  Further guidance on 
shortlisting is contained in the Recruitment Framework.  

  

12.2 Shortlisted candidates should be provided with details of the selection process, 
including any tests, in writing giving as much prior notice as possible, usually a 
minimum of 5 working days.  In accordance with the Equality Act 2010 they should also 
be asked to advise if there are any particular arrangements or reasonable adjustments 
that could be made so that they can participate fully in the selection process.    

  

  

13. Assessment  

13.1 Assessment of a candidate’s suitability for the post will be made against the person 

specification and will be done using a variety of methods.  These will include:   

  

• application form  

• job simulation exercises  

• presentations  

• in-tray and written exercises  

• group discussions, role-play exercises  

• psychometric testing  

• assessment centres  

  

  

65



 

 6    

14. Interviews  

14.1 The key purpose of an interview is to assess the skills, experience and general 

background of the candidate in order to decide if they are a suitable candidate or 

the most suitable candidate for a particular job.  

  

14.2 The interview panel should be made up of a minimum of two people.  The panel 

should meet prior to the interviews to study application forms, plan interview 

questions and agree the format of the interview.  

  

14.3.1 Broadly similar questions must be asked of every candidate at the interview to 

ensure equity and that every candidate has the same opportunity to demonstrate 

their suitability for the post.  

  

14.4 Further guidance on preparing interview questions and conducting interviews is 

contained in the Managers’ Guide to Recruitment.  

  

  

15. References  

15.1 Following the selection process references must be taken up for the selected 

candidate.  The purpose of a reference is to confirm the information gained by the 

selection panel or contained in the application.  All applicants are required to  

provide two referees for the post they are applying for, one of which must be the 

current or last employer.  

  

15.2  An offer of employment can be made subject to satisfactory references and pre 

employment checks.  However references will need to be obtained before a 

contract of employment can be issued.  

  

15.3 References should be requested in writing however if the appointment is urgent the 

manager may seek to obtain a verbal/telephone reference using the reference 

template.  

  

16. Pre employment checks  

16.1 There are a number of pre-employment checks that need to be carried out prior to the 

commencement of employment.  These include:  

• Confirmation of right of abode  

• Pre employment medical check  

• Disclosure & Barring Service check (where appropriate)  

  

17. Safeguarding Posts  

17.1 Posts that involve working with children and vulnerable adults are covered by 

safeguarding requirements.  Additional arrangements exist for the recruitment 

process for such posts and managers must ensure they comply with the Safer 

Recruitment – Guidance for Managers which is available on the intranet.  Support 

and advice is also available from the Human Resources section.    

  

66



 

 7    

18. Employment offer   

18.1 Formal offers of employment should be confirmed following receipt of satisfactory 

references.  Any offer should be made subject to the satisfactory completion of the 

pre-employment checks detailed above.  

  

18.2 The successful candidate will be provided with clear information about starting their 

employment with the Council.  This will include information about who to report to 

and times for the first day, pay and probationary periods, including timescales for 

review.   

  

19. Joining the organisation  

19.1 The induction of a new member of staff is important to ensure that the individual is 

integrated into the Council, embraces its values and behaviours and is quickly able 

to carry out the full role.  Managers must ensure that they follow the Welcome 

Journey – Guidance for Managers which details the process to be followed during 

the first six months of employment.  

  

  

  

HUMAN RESOURCES  

OCTOBER 2021 

  

67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

Recruitment & Selection Procedure 
 

Amendment to include Name Blind Recruitment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
 
Human Resources 

Lead officer: 
 Jane Jenkinson 

Date of Meeting  
 
21/10/21 Assessors: 

Keeley Asher 
 

Neutral Assessor: 
Carol Drury 

  

APPENDIX 3 

69



1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

The Recruitment and Selection Procedure is being updated to include a 
section on Name Blind Recruitment.  The purpose for implementing this is 
to reduce the potential for unconscious bias to achieve the principle of the 
Council’s commitment to employment practices which ensure that no 
potential or current employee is treated less favourably on grounds of sex, 
race, religion or belief, disability, age, sexual orientation, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership or pregnancy and maternity.     
 

 
 

Is this a new or existing policy?  Existing  
 
2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 

 
 
Equality Group 

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups?  
 
Please state which for each 
group 

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative. 
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why   

Age 
 
 

No impact  The amendment to the 
procedure has no impact on 
Age.  The equality impact for 
this characteristic is covered in 
the original Equality 
Assessment. 
Equalities information is 
removed from the recruitment 
and selection process at the 
point of shortlisting 

Disability 
 

 

No impact The amendment to the 
procedure has no impact on 
Disability.  The equality impact 
for this characteristic is 
covered in the original Equality 
Assessment. Equalities 
information is removed from 
the recruitment and selection 
process at the point of 
shortlisting and would only be 
shared with interviewers if 

70



reasonable adjustment needed 
to be made to meet the needs 
of an interviewee. 

Race 
 

Positive impact Information which identifies 
candidates’ name and dates of 
educational qualifications is 
removed from the shortlisting 
process and therefore reduces 
the potential for unconscious 
bias on the grounds of race.   
Equalities information is 
removed from the recruitment 
and selection process at the 
point of shortlisting 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

No impact   The amendment to the 
procedure has no impact on 
Gender Reassignment.  The 
equality impact for this 
characteristic is covered in the 
original Equality Assessment. 
Equalities information is 
removed from the recruitment 
and selection process at the 
point of shortlisting  

Religion or 
Belief   

No impact  The amendment to the 
procedure has no impact on 
Religion or Belief.  The 
equality impact for this 
characteristic is covered in the 
original Equality Assessment. 
Equalities information is 
removed from the recruitment 
and selection process at the 
point of shortlisting  

Sex 
 
 
   

Positive impact Information which identifies 
this characteristic is removed 
from the shortlisting process 
and therefore reduces the 
potential for unconscious bias 
on the grounds of sex 

Sexual 
Orientation 
 

No impact The amendment to the 
procedure has no impact on 
Sexual Orientation.  The 
equality impact for this 
characteristic is covered in the 
original Equality Assessment. 
Equalities information is 
removed from the recruitment 
and selection process at the 
point of shortlisting  

71



Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

No impact The amendment to the 
procedure has no impact on 
Pregnancy and Maternity.  The 
equality impact for this 
characteristic is covered in the 
original Equality Assessment. 
Equalities information is 
removed from the recruitment 
and selection process at the 
point of shortlisting and would 
only be shared with 
interviewers if reasonable 
adjustment needed to be made 
to meet the needs of an 
interviewee. 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 

No impact The amendment to the 
procedure has no impact on 
Marriage and Civil Partnership.  
The equality impact for this 
characteristic is covered in the 
original Equality Assessment. 

Carers No impact The amendment to the 
procedure has no impact on 
Carers.  The equality impact 
for this characteristic is 
covered in the original Equality 
Assessment. Equalities 
information is removed from 
the recruitment and selection 
process at the point of 
shortlisting and would only be 
shared with interviewers if 
reasonable adjustment needed 
to be made to meet the needs 
of an interviewee. 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 
 
*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation) 
 

No impact The amendment to the 
procedure has no impact on 
other groups.  The equality 
impact for this category is 
covered in the original Equality 
Assessment. 

72



General 
comments 

Whilst the only two protected characteristics that will be directly 
impacted by the amendment to the Recruitment and Selection 
Procedure are race and sex there is a positive impact for other 
characteristics by determining on suitability rather than 
characteristics. 

 
 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 

Reviewing other Local Authorities / company HR policies, XpertHR, best 
practice. 
 

 
If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 
  

Not aware of any gaps 

 
 
4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 

required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

   

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality.  

 

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2  

   

c) Adverse impact but continue  

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

   

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful 

 

73



 
b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

 
  

 

 
 
b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 

changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis 

 
c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 

justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 
 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Jane Jenkinson 
(Name and title)   Senior HR Officer 
  

Date completed:  21/10/21  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Carol Drury 
(Name and title)   Community Engagement & Policy Development 
Officer 
 

Date signed off:     21/10/21  
 

74



Employment Committee Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
 

Subject Purpose 
Meeting 

Date 
Outcome sought 

HR Dashboard 
 

The Committee to be presented with the HR Dashboard, 
which includes:  

• Establishment Figures 

• Sickness and Absence 

• Starters and Leavers 

• Performance Management 

• Learning and Development  

• Equality and Diversity 

17 
November 

2021 

Dashboard to be presented at 
each Employment Committee for 
its consideration. 

Return to work at Council 
Offices 

To consider the implications of a return to work at 
Council Offices following the Covid-19 pandemic. 

To consider options available to 
facilitate the return of working at 
Council Offices following the 
Covid-19 pandemic. 

Mental health and wellbeing 
An update on the mental health and wellbeing action 
plan presented to Committee. 

To note the actions taken. 

Name Blind Recruitment  
A policy document on the implementation of Name Blind 
Recruitment presented to Committee. 

To approve the updated 
Recruitment and Selection 
Procedure to include Name Blind 
Recruitment. 

Pay Policy Statement 
 

Annual report to Employment Committee, to form part of 
the Budget setting process. 

19 January 
2022 

To consider and recommend to 
full Council for approval.  

People Strategy The refresh of the strategy to be presented to 
Committee January 2022.  

To consider and recommend to 
full Council for approval. 

75

A
genda Item

 9



Pay Review 
 

Findings of review to be presented to Committee March 
2022. 9 March 

2022 

Undertake a pay review of the 
organisation. 
 

Items to be assigned 

Employee Handbook 
 

Update to Employment Committee annually 
 

Annual review of the Employee Handbook, to ensure in line with current legislation and changes 
 

Employee Rewards and 
Recognition 
 

Update to Employment Committee annually. 
 

Annual report to Employment Committee to update on initiatives in place and any new initiatives. 

Onboarding Procedure 
 

Update to Employment Committee annually. 
 

Review of how onboarding has changed since lockdown and new ways of working and the effectiveness on 
inductions. 

Workforce Equality Report 
 

Update to Employment Committee Annually. 

Chief Executive Appraisal 
 

Annual Appraisal  
 

The Committee to conduct the Chief Executives Annual Appraisal. 

SKDC Intranet 
 
 

Review of SKDC intranet. 

 

76


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2021
	4 Updates from the previous meeting
	5 HR Dashboard
	Appendix 1 - HR Dashboard

	6 Mental Health and Wellbeing Update
	Appendix 1 - Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan
	Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Assessment

	7 Name Blind Recruitment Procedure
	Appendix 1 - Recruitment and Selection Policy
	Appendix 2 - Recruitment and Selection Procedure
	Appendix 3 - Equality Impact Assessment

	9 Work Programme 2021 - 2022

